REGULAR MEETING OF THE PARCHMENT CITY COMMISSION

February 20, 2023
7PM.

Parchment City Commission
Mayor Robert D. Britigan II1

Vice Mayor Thomas Jordan Commissioner Holly Evans

Commissioner Tammy Cooper Commissioner Robin Madaras

Commissioner Doug Fooy Commissioner Michael Conner
Officers

City Manager Nancy R. Stoddard

City Attorney Robert Soltis

City Treasurer/Clerk Shannon Stutz
Call to Order

. Pledge of Allegiance

. Roll Call

. Approval of Minutes
From the City Commission Meeting of February 6, 2023

. Additions/Changes to the Agenda - Approval

Citizen Comments — Items ON the Agenda

1If you wish to comment regarding items ON the agenda, please follow the formaz below:

¢ State your name and address for the records
o You are allowed up to 5 minutes for your comments
* Please let us know if you require special accommodations by notifying the Clerk



10.

11,

12.

13.

* Reminder: You will be making a statement, without discussion from the

Commission. You are always welcome to make an appointment with the City
Manager to further discuss your comments.

Consent Agenda

Items on the consent agenda will be dealt with one vote by the City Commission
unless a Commissioner requests an item be dealt with individually.

Motion to RECEIVE OR APPROVE as indicated:
i.  Warrant No. 1483 — action
ii, Financial Statement for January 2023 — receive
ifi. Credit Card Statement for January 2023 - action
iv. KATS Technical Meeting Minutes, January 12, 2023 - receive

Unfinished Business
A, Step Up Kids Run Club Presentation, Katie Brandel — action

New Business

A. Kindleberger Arts Commission Presentation, Jon Heasley - action

B. Global Remediation & Environmental Services LLC - Access Agreement, Fencing of
Former Lagoon Area — action

C. Resolution to Waive Penalty for Failure to File a Property Transfer Affidavit - action

Citizen Comments — Items ON or OFF the Agenda

Persons wishing to comment on items that are on/off the agenda are instructed to
please follow the same format as Citizen Comments for items on the agenda.
Mayor and Commissioner Comments

City Manager Comments

Adjournment



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE PARCHMENT CITY COMMISSION HELD ON
MONDAY FEBRUARY 6, 2023, ,

Call to order

Mayor Britigan called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. then led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance.

Roll Call.

Present: Mayor Britigan, Vice Mayor Jordan, Commissioners Conner, Cooper, Evans, and Fooy. City Manager
Stoddard, Treasuret/Clerk Stutz, Attomey Soltis.

Absent: Madaras.

Moved by Vice Mayor Jordan, supported by Commissioner Fooy to excuse the absence of Commissioner Madaras. Motion
Carried,

Minutes
Moved by Commissioner Evans, supported by Vice Mayor Jordan to approve the amended minutes of the J: anuary 16, 2023
Regular meeting. Motion Carried.

Additions or changes to the agenda.
Add 9D. Kalamazoo Township Police Department Quarterly Report - receive. Moved by Commissioner Cooper supported by
Commissioner Conner to approve the agenda as amended. Motion Carried.

Citizen Comments ~ Items ON the Agenda

None.
Consent Agenda
A, Questions by Commissioners were answered regarding specific items. Moved by Vice Mayor Jordan, supported by

Commissioner Cooper to receive the consent agenda items. Motion Carried.

Unfinished Business
None.

New Business

Al Step Up Kids Run Club Presentation, Katie Brandel - action. Ms. Brandel was unable to make it to tonight’s
meeting. Moved by Commissioner Cooper, supported by Vice Mayor Jordan to table the presentation until such time that Ms.
Brandel is able to make it. Motion Carried.

B. Cat Nap Lodge Pawtoberfest and Kindleberger Park Reservation, Sunken Garden - action. City Manager Stoddard
reported that last fall this group had a successful first-time event, even though it was short notice. Reports from DPW were
that the Sunken Garden was cleaned up properly. The group is hoping for a larger turn out this year on October 7, 2023 at
1pm. Moved by Commissioner Fooy, supported by Commissioner Cooper to approve ths Cat Nap Lodge Pawtoberfest
reservation of the Sunken Garden as presented. Roll call vote was as follows: '

Aves: Britigan, Cooper, Conner, Evans, Fooy, and Jordan.
Nays: None,

Absent; Madaras.

Abstain: None.

Motion Carried 6-0.

C, Global Remediation & Environmental Services LLC Access Agreement - action. Mayor Britigan noted this was
approved last year, but the group wasn’( able to finish the work in the time allotted. Attorney Soltis affirmed that this is the
same agreement with the current year as the only change, allowing them to finish the clean-up at the Georgia Pacific site.
Comrmissioner Cooper stated that she thought the progress that they’ve made is substantial, and feels positive about renewing
the agreement. Moved by Vice Mayor Tordan, supported by Commissioner Fooy tc approve the access agreement as
presented and authorize the City Manager to sign ali documents related to the action. Roll call vote was as follows:

Ayes: Britigan, Cooper, Conner, Evans, Fooy, and Jordan.
Nays: None.

Absent: Madaras.

Abstain; None,

Motion Carried 6-0.




Minutes of the February 6, 2023 City of Parchment Commission Page 2 of 2

10.

11.

12

D. Kalamazoo Township Police Department Quarterly Report, Chief Ergang. Chief Ergang reported the city was doing
well; he added statistics on calls for service and their types. He reported that the department finished the first full quarter with
a resource officer in Parchment Schools, with good feedback. He reminded everyone to make sure not to leave vehicles
running in their driveways as there have been some crimes of opportunity lately.

Citizen Comments
None.

Mayor and Commissioner Comments
Commissioner Cooper said she was glad there’s a resource officer at the schools, giving parents peace of mind.

Vice Mayor fordan thanked Chief Ergang for his report.

Mayor Britigan reminded everyone that the budget workshop is direcily after the meeting. He also said Patterson Street
Bridge will be closed Feb 27 through August 31, 2023 for repair.

City Manager Comments/Reports
City Manager Stoddard invited anyone who has questions or concerns to call and discuss them with her.

Adjournment .
There being no further business to come before the Commission, it was moved by Commissioner Cooper and supported by
all to adjourn the meeting at 7:24 p.m. '

Shannon Stutz, City Clerk



City of Parchment
Check Register Report

Warrant 1483
Check CheckDate  Vendor Name Description Amount
37431 02/07/2023 COMPANION LIFE LIFE & AD&D INS - FEBRUARY 66.50
37432 02/07/2023 CONSUMERS ENERGY CITYWIDE MONTHLY ENERGY USE 3,953.45
37433 02/07/2023 vOID 0.00
37434 02/07/2023  KAL CO MEALTH & COMMUNITY SERV HHW MONTHLY FEES - DECEMBER 25.02
37435 02/07/2023 KALAMAZOOQ CO. ROAD COMMISSION TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINT & ENERGY USAGE 141.67
37436 02/07/2023 KALAMAZOO QIL CO. FUEL CHARGES 01/01TO 01/15/2023 205.43
37437 02/07/2023 O'BOYLE COWELL BLALOCK & ASSOC URBAN WILDLIFE CORRIDOR PROJECTS - DECEM 262.50
37438 02/07/2023 REPUBLIC SERVICES #249 DPW - FEBRUARY ACCT #3-0249-1048811 556.89
37439 02/07/2023 THRUN LAW FIRM P.C. USDA LOAN -SEWER EASEMENTS 112.00

)

L —



Z9' 8% TIEEZ’T F9LEZ 8879971 00700% ‘¢ 2IRITPANH 000" ZZL-002-T0T
00°0 00°C0L 00°0 000 00T QoL uoTjesuaduo) §,IoqIoM 000°0Z2L-002-T0T
£S°¢TT  (08-90L‘2) P67 89T°C 08 9GL 2T 007000702 uoTsusg 000°8TL-00Z-TOT
95921 (PE*Z90°T) 00°0 YE"Z90's 00°000°‘F STUTIOMPa FDUBINSUT 160 9TL-002-T0T
9887 9T LLL PE ZI9FL'F P8 ZZZ’'CE 0C 00089 eoueInsul ITI/Teitdson 000 9TL~-002-T0T
ZSTLY S9°01S°S TE ELE GE'6B6 'Y 00'00G6 70T Altznoeg TeToog 000°GSTL-002-T0T
62 6% 8G°ZFE Ve 09°LT6 ¥ TV LS9 'EC 007000 ‘8% SWIL 3IBg - TToXARd 000 €0L-002-T0T
7628 667806 LS 90°€96 ‘2T TO"T60°G9 007000 ‘€eT SWIL TThd -~ TTo3ABd 000 Z0L-00E-T0T
UOTIRIISTUTWPY — (02 3d2Q
TLTEL LZ2°09£°8 ZL*G0Z°1 €L BEV ‘ER 00°008°1¢ saTiersthel - po1 2dsag Tel0L
0G0 00°00€ 00790 000 00'00€ SMOJUBRTTSOSTH 000°656-00T-T0T
6L°8 S5F096°F 000 GG TREFR 06 006G BuTtysTrand % butiutad 00" 006-00T-T0T
0% T4 00 ZLS 000 00°BEF’T 000002 ucTingrrjuo) LUTTTRSSEM 100 088-00T-T0T
05" SE 00°S%9 000 00°SSE 00'000°T UcT3owoxd AJTUNMIICT 000 088-00T-T10T
00°00T (0D°SL) 000 0064 0o BuTuTeal, ? S93NITISUT 000°098-00T-10T
GL°0E 8L BEQ'T 0oto ZZ 19V 00°00s‘T geng 3 sdIUSIoqUaH 000°0£8-00T-T0T
TZ°90T {0S°S¥L) 05 FvE 06 SHL ET 00°000°ZT TATSE TRN}DRIJUC]/ [RUOTESSICIT 000" 008-00T-10T
£0°€0T  (12°1%) 00°0 12 T2L 007004 so11ddng butjexado 000 0%L—-00T-TOT
87 °9¢ SO°LPT Z9°TT G625 00°00¢ ATCDTPON 000°ZZL-00T-TOT
000 00°05¢ 00°0 o0 00°0GE uoTjesusdwo) §,I3}I0oM 000 0ZL-00T-TOT
z9°92 0L EZ9 09°6F 0E*9ZT 00068 AlTInoss TeTO0S 000°STL-00T-TOT
£9°98 00°590°T 007008 00°GE6 D 0070008 swtr jaed - TrToxdeg 000 E0L~D0T-TOT
) eAaTyeTSTHST - 0T 3dea
S8INAITRUDdRY
0909 ZT BLL'ToL 9E"TLZ ‘¥ 8L SFE'GTIZ T 00 ¥ET'CT0’Z SENNAATY TYLOL
09°09 ZZ'BLL'T6L 9 TLZ'F BLGPE6TZ'T 00°%zZT’CI0'C 000 3deq T®ioL
0G"00T  (LTI"T) 000 LT T 0070 1x04s ® I8a0 sitsodeg 000°969-000-T0T
Zv 9w ZG E€6R'T 007 00T 8F 9062 00°00%°S $@oAN0S bulouedtd IsylQ 000°569-000-T0T
0999 VETTIR'S 000 99°885°TT Q0 009 “LT SNOUBT SIS TH 000" ¥69-000-T0T
000 00 000°012 000 0070 00 000 ’01E PRIUAIAD I0F JURUSSINAUTSH 000°089-000-T01T
0070 06 000°52¥ 000 00°0 007000 °52F butstey pung TOO GA9-000-T0T
€9°g 0T TFE‘¥® 000 06852 007009 % $IUSWISDAUL UG JEIIIJUT, 000" %29-000-T0T
I11°0% IS TFE’S GG OLT 6% "85Z°C 00005 ‘L S9UTd DTIFBIL 000 €99-000-10T
000 007008 000 000 00 004 paIspusy §80TaAdas X037 sabieyn 000°2£9-000-T0T
FETEG 00"ER0’‘ZL 000 00°L56°62T 00000202 ¥Rl S£91®S 2183 000°5L5~-000-T0T
00700T (gL LLz’'v6) 000 CLTLLZ'PE 00°0 JUBTd ISJeM - JUBIS d3els 000 ¥¥S—-000-T01T
000 00*ZST'9 00°0 octo 00" 2519 sjuexy Tzasped 000 T75-000~T0T
00°00T  (00°8ET*LT) 00°C 00T8ET ‘L2 000 sjueIs =23e3g 000 0%S-000-TOT
000 00" ZLT'EZ 000 000 00 CLT EC burpung Teaspad IIUI0 000 825-000-10T
T L9 6Z FOF bV ST TTL'T TL'GEG'T6 00°000°9€T SUCTIDBTTOD 2158M DTTOS 000" FSH-000-TOT
0970 00700L°2 000 8000 Q0 00L E s98J UCTIBaIDDY 000 ESF-000-T0T
9L 9% 81 6%E°8 gL 22G Z8TOVE‘L 00 00L ST 5934 UOTSTASTARD 000 Z8F-000-TOT
€€ 1¢ 96008 ‘11 00°0ST FO G6T’'E 00"000°ST §984 PuUE ISUSDIT 000 1S¥—000-10T
91" €6 Gz E00‘2 B§ 9921 G.°96Z°'LT 00°00E ‘62 $994 UOTIOSTIOD $T 000'8¥¥—000-10T
LOTLL 8- L89 90°¥vE 91°21e’'e 00T000’'E §9¥¥] U0 AlTeusd 000" SF¥—000-T0T
GG LE 969898 000 PLTOET'ES G0 000 07T ¥Rl 2IVYS dels A} TUNWWO] [BI0T 000" T¥%-000-TOT
€8 °T0T (PB°GE) 00°0 ¥8 5£2°2 00700272 SOTITTINEL [RTIISNPUT — SOXE] 000°80%-000-T0T
1.7 66 0L T6T°C 0070 0€ "80E "F9L 00°00S°99L anueasy XBJ 000" %0F-000-10T
000 3dag
Sonuanayg
ONAA TVIANTD — TOT pung
as=sn (TYREONGY) TYIRMON {(ISYTIDEA) HSVIMINI  (TONONAY) TYHHEON LA900E TEINARY NOILATIDSHEA IgRON 1D
IHad & TNV £Z0Z/TE/T0 HINOHW £20Z/1E£/10 £e-zz0¢

AT TINAY

Z1/1 1obeg

H0A ALIAILDY

JONYTVE dLX

£20¢/1€/T0 DNIQNE dOoIddd

ENIWHDYYA A0 ALIS Y04 I¥0dEd FIOLIANHAGXHE ONY HANAATH

Jjuswysaeg :ddg
SES rIes)

Wd ¥T:€0 £20E/91/20



E6°7F 81°€458°22 8S°TTL'Z €8°9F9 ‘8T 00°00G7'1¥ UoTSUS]g 000 8TL-0FF~-T0T
05°29 00006 09 €LY T 00°005°T 0O'00F‘e aTqTIonpag souURaAnsSuUl T00 9TL—0PF-T10T
ZT LS §L7L987'81 ST F9G°E SZ ZET'S2 00 000 '%F 2ouUBANSUI IITT/TelTdsol 000" 9TL-0bF-TOT
ag-eL 197°8L9°T 6L 728 6L TE9'F 850°00£’s A3Tanoeg TeRTDOS 000 STL-0%F-TOT
9£79%g 95°805'%% B6°296 0T FPITEY LS 00°000°20T SwrIL TTod - [ToIded 000 Z0L-0FF-TOT
S80TAXRS DTITANd - 0fp 3deg
66 TG ZL'Z0T'6S Z17988°L 8¢ 166 '€9 Q0"00T ‘€21 81Ta - 9£¢ 3deq Teaol
£5° %2 00°0ZE‘TT 000 00°08%°¢c 00°000°5T Te3Tde) 000°0L6~9€C-T0T
000 007000 0T 000 00°0 007060°0T SI010RIZUOD JUTRR 3 xTeday 000°0€6-9£E-T0T
LO*LE 0T 6EF°'T 60-2s¢ 06 0LZ'T 00'00L'Z S2TITTIAN 000 0Z6-9£E-T0T
60°LOT (GO Z66) 00°0 00"Z66“FT 00°000°FT SPUOg 3 SDOURINSUL 000°0T6-9EE~TOT
0F 1S LT I0°C T9°659 £9°851°2 00°002°% SUCTIED TUNILIO) 000 0G8-9££-T0T
19°LS BG GLY ‘62 Zh vLB’9 fA A A4 00°000°0L ‘ATDS TRNIDRIJUOD/TRUOTSESIOIT 000°008-9£S-T0T
0cTo 00°00T 00°p 000 00T00T soTTddng Ajsges 000" 08L-9£€-T0T
SC 0T {SP Z0F) 000 SEUZOF'T 0C 006 T saTiddng soususjuTeH % ITedsy 000 SLL-%EE-TOT
LB9T zE'1E8 0c-0 8979971 00°000'T ITO % PuUITOoSES Q00 9¥L-0EE-TAT
000 0070015 00°0 000 00"o0tT’s saT1ddng burieaadp 0007 0FL-9E€E-TOT
satd — 9ge 3deqg
0z 8% ZZTTEET'LBT ¥0°Z0G8 LS 8£°085°09% 00" FTL LY 01104 - 00f 3deqa TelOL
€€ 89 06 ZZ¥ €81 06" %89 ‘9¢ 05 T6L°962 00 FTZ 0FP TAISE [ENIDRIJUOD/TRUCTSSRIOI] 00 008-00E-T0T
015 96 "8¥ Z0TTT F0°1G 00°00T aIRD TIPSR 000" 22L-00E-T0T
LE"9E 9.°T8E ZI LY FZ 812 00009 AjTanoeg TeTO0Z 000 STL-00E-TOT
9L" 15§ 00°08Z'¢E 00°09L 00°025°¢ 00 0089 SwTL jaed - TI0IAed 000" E0L-00E-TOT
83TTod - (Q0g 3dsg
ST €€ 08 L% LT 06°¢266 05°256°8 00 008762 saoTaXeg Tebal - prg 1deg TelOL
LG ET 00°QLF 8 SLTEY 00°0€E’T 00°00876 SI913EH 2OTTOJ-ASUICIRY 000°Z08~0TZ-TOT
PETSE 0S LLL'S 5L°8%6 0S5 gzT L 00°000°9T Teisuss — AUIolaly 000 T08-0TZ-T01
seaTaTes TebeT - (017 adaa
£0°69 95 FFZ'8TT 87918 '9f PETLLSE0T 007228 °18¢ UoTJeIASTUTURY - 00g 3dsd TeioLn
I0°T0T  (00°0%2) 000 007050762 00°008°%C Teyrde) 000°0L6-002-T01
007001 {£6°L9E) 0070 €67 L9E 00°0 SNOBUETSOSTH 000°556-002-T0T
9.7z02 (ZF-TEQ‘E) 000 eV 186°S 00°056°¢ 51030BA3UOD " JUTEH 3 ITedey 000 "0EB~00Z-TOT
£S5 €9 9L 909" T 887 86L FZ G6L T 007 00% % S9T3T7TI3A 000 0Z6-008-10T
£9°50T (00" 00%) 00°0 007 00S 7L 00° 00T L Spuog ® SDURINSUT 000" 0T6-002-T0T
SZ°95 00" 5.8 00006 00 G2T T 0070002 butystrgnd » Burijurtig 000°006-002-T0T
ST°£0T  (T0°T¥} €8 LG9 IO TFE'T 00 00E°T bututexy % &sinitieur 000" 098-002-10T
LG 9L 8C OTLT 9z 6ST'L 79 68G°S 00" 00E ‘L SUOTIED TUMWMCD 000°058-002-T0T
£T°6% 05°859 0S°L8T 0S°TFS 00o0T’T song 3 SATUSISIUSK 000°0E8-008-T0T
ET 60 IR AFAYAL L9 FFL £LTLBZ'Y 00'00G‘6 ga0TAZeS Isandwo] 000°'¢08-002-10T
£6°85T (OG- LLF'ET) Ty LBYF 05 6FE ‘9L 00 ZLB'ZE TATSS TENIDBIJUCT/TRUOTSS210Ag 000°008-00Z-T0T
L9°FT £0°26L°T 000 L6 LOE 07001’ setrddng esurualuTEW 3 xTeday 000" 5LL-D0E-TO0T
T6°0LT  (FTI*8THF'T) 08°6LT ¥T°8TI¥‘E 00°p00‘ze seTTddns Hutierado 000 0FL-002-TOT
6F €L 9z '¥45z'c ST POF YL G¥9 ‘2 007006 ‘L sbeysog 000 0EL-00Z-T0T
¥6°90T  {00°089) 000 o087 ‘0T 00°008'6 ITyoUSd JUSWSITIDY WHOI 000 " FZL~002-TOT
seand rpusdxy
ANOA TYEANSD - T0T Pung
aasn {(TYRNONGY) TYRE0ON (ASYTIOHA) TSVAIONT  (TYHIONEY) ‘TYREON 1LI3OANd dIANAWYE HOILIYoSHd FIIHAN TD
19ag % FONVIVE £20Z/TE/TO0 HINOW ET0T/TE/TO £z-gecie

ATITIIVAY

¢1/e tebeg

Y03 ALIAILDYE

HONVIVE dLX

€20C/TE/TO ONIANYT dCTHdd

LNIWHDEYd A0 ALID MOd L¥0d3Y TINLIANAIXT dN¥Y HNNEATT

JuswyosIed dgd
§gg ixesn

Wd FT:€0 €202/91/20



0% €8 €v-LT6'EEL ¥6°€587L8T LETBEE'TLE T 00°99Z'500°¢ SHIOLIANIIXT TYEOL
69769 12°22£°SS FTI°096 %1 6L LZZLZT 00°0585°Z8T 2INYTOD ¥ uwoTlesInsy ‘siIed - 164 1dag Telol
0G0 00700079 00" 0 000 00°000°9 Tearded 000 0L6-TSL-TOT
6291 ZOERY 52 00°0 86°9GL T 00700262 SICIORIZUOD JuTER ¥ ITedey 000 0E6-TGL-TOT
£5°98 96" €56 LZ TS89 FFTOPT ‘9 00" 00T*L SSTITITIN 000 0E6-TGL-TOT
00°00T 000 000 CO*00T 'L 00°00T"L SpUOg 3 SoURANSUY 000 QT6-TSL-TOT
00'00T {08°Z80°FC} 000 08°¢80°'%2 000 TATIE TRNIDRIIUCD/[RUCTSSII0I] 000" 008-TI5L-TOT
000 00 00¥ 0070 000 00" 00% soTTddng Azages 000 08L-TGL-TOT
90795 86 TTIL'S 90 6IE 207882 L 00°000°€T sotrddny sourusluTel % Ztedsy 000" SLL-TSL-TOT
L0 L8 60°29E LLTZFE T6°LEV’T 00008 T II0 ¥ SUITOSES 000 9VL-TSL-TOT
LB 18 FZTEST PG 9€T 817969 00058 sIedTPSH 000" Z2L-TSL-TOT
000 00°005°E 0070 000 00° 005 ‘¢ uotjesuaduol §,I93ICM 000°0ZL-TGL-T0T
1759 T0°69¢£°8 T0°S%E‘e 66" FED ‘ST 00°000 %2 uoTSuUad 000 " 8TL-TGL-TOT
000 00°00% T 00" ¢ 000 00°00F°T STqTIONPag S2UBANSUT TOO 9TL-TSL-TOT
A LT 0G879T 9€° 60T ‘T £8°6F9 7L 00°005°%2 9DUBINSUT 3FTT/TR3TASOH 000 9TL~-TGL-TOT
5708 607024 9L7E8S 16°6L6 ‘T 00" 00LE AaTanoes TRIDOF 000 STL-TSL-TOT
£1°Z8 S8 SFS 0T LETTLY 6 ST #SF ‘8% 00000 ‘65 swIL TIng — [loxked 000"Z0L-T6L-T0T
SINATND # UoTARDIDSY ‘siIed -~ TG. adaqg
00765 LLT9EE 69T F9°£28°0F £Z°E€9%9'EWE 00°00C0'ETY sosuadxg JURID JURTd I@1eM - [6% 1dsg TeaoL
00 00T (0O BLT 9%} co-o 00" BLTOF 000 Tejrdes 000" 0LE-TESG-TOT
00°00T {EE€°6TL) 00°0 EET6TL 0070 SX0JDBIIUOY " JUTER 3 ITeday 000 0E6-T6S-TOT
007001  (€6°TZF'T) 08°94¢ E6°T2E T 00°0 SOTATTTIO 000°0Z6-165-T0T
L L¥ L6 ¥GL LTE F8°909 ‘0¥ €0°SPZ S6T D000 ETF *ATIG TENIDRAJUCY/ TRUOTESDIOII 000°008-T65-T0T
00 00T  (F6°2Z0T) oo-g LA 000 satTddng bBurieaadp 000 0FL-T65-T0T
sasuadxd juers JUETd I93BM - T65 3deq
LT 0L 8T 0817611 0L"9Z9°LE ZB° 662082 00°08F ‘66¢C seDTAIag OTTIAnd - 0Fp 3dad Telol
SZTITS T {00°5zZE°82) 060 00°GZE’'0E 000002 Te3tded 000 0LE-0FF-TOT
00 00T  {69°918°Z) 69°918°2 69°918°¢C 000 SNOAUBRTLSDSTH 000 SS6-0FF-T0T
968 Z0°€2TT 6T 265°E 86°9L5°0T 00 008°TT SIORDBIJUCD " JUTeH ¥ aTedsy 000 0E6-0FF-TOT
968§ SZTT06°TT GG ZE0E SLTB60°LT 00000 ‘6% buT3iybTT 323738 000 9Z6-0pF-T0T
PSTEL 99°10€°C 0T hED’Z ¥E86£°9 oorooL’s SSTITTTIN 000" 0Z26-00¥F-T10T
LB'T6 00827 000 00°ZL5°G 00000 ’9 Spucd 3 2DUBINEUL 000 CT6-0FF-TOT
0070 00" 00S 0o 0 0070 00"00% ueT1oWwoId A TUNIMICD 000" 088-0FF-TOT
009 00'00E 00 000 00°00E buTtuTerl ¥ $93INITISUL 000 098-0FF-TOT
66851  {98°68%) 00°0 287685 °T O 000’ SUOTIBD TUNIIIO S 000" 0S8-0FF-TOT
Fb 55 00" TOF 00°66F 00°66F 00°006 seng 3 sdIysIequai 000°0E£8-0FF-T0T
9L°69 22 L06 00°0 8L Z60'E 00°000°€ TeIUsY WIOITUN 000°ST8-0FF-T0T
FE"99 £T1°858°6€ 02 ¥1L 6 LTIV 8L 00°00F“BTT s8bIrey) WOTINBTIOD USTAUny 000°018-0%%—T0T
99°85T (957985} 007006 9679861 00°000°T TATDS [RMIDBIZUOD/TRUOTSESI0EI 000°008~0FF~TO0T
00" 0 00008 0070 00°0 a0 00s sot1ddng Alegeg 000" 08L-0FF-TOT
LG GE Fo9°€o¢ LZ Z8Z'E 9g€-9€g L 00700z ‘8 sa11ddng adueusjurel 3 ITedsy 000 SLL-0FP-TOT
P6 LST  {PL1°6FS°2) BETTI0'E 7T 6569 00 00% ‘¥ TIO % QUITOSEDH D00 9FPL-0FPF-T0T
9L"T Lotesy’eg 000 £E6°EF 00700S°¢ saTTddng Hutiexsdo 000 0FL-0FF~T0T
Z0-EL ¥E'66E 2L Z6T 9%°080°T 00°08%°T SIBT TPV 000" ZTL—0FF-TO0T
0070 00°009°¢ 000 000 007009 '€ uoTiesuadio) §,I3I0M 000" 02L-0F%-T0T
saIniTpuadwy
aMnd TYEENED - T[0T pung
assn {(TYIMONEY) TYRHON (ASYEEDAA} ASYANONI  (CIVRRONSY) TYWI0N LEADANT qAANINY NOILETEDSHd FAGHAN T2
Isad % AONETHE £20Z/1£/T0 HINOH EZ0E/TE/TO £2-2¢0¢
HTIYTIVAY HOd ALIATIOW HONVTIWH dLX

€202/TE/T0 SNIONT dOTI¥dd

ZI/¢ :9beg

INIWHDEYd d0 ALID ¥Od4 I1d0dHd TUNITANYdXE ANY dOANIAZY

JuswysIed :4dg
S55 a980

W4 $T:E0 £20Z/91/20



SHANLIANAAKH 3 SIONHAHY JC LHEN

SHANLIANHAEY TYE.LOL
SHONHAHT TEILOL
SONOE TVIENSD - TOT pund

AN TVHINED - T0T PUng

€T 8GL 6L°058786G (85 2BS£8T) (6L7266'1%) 00°858°9

0% €9 EF LZ6'EEL F6°E£687L8T LS"8EE'TLZ'T 00°99Z7500°2

0909 ZZ78LL ZTEL 9E"TLZ ¥ 8L GYEETCT 00" reLZI0‘Z

amsn ("TYREONEY)  "TYREON (ISYFIDEA) FASYHIUONT  {TYREONAY) TYHION I9I900d AIANTHNY

1509 % HONVIYLD £20Z/TE/TO HINOW £202/1E/10 £g-220¢
ATAVIIVAY ¥0d ALIAILDVY FONVTIYE dLA

ZT/¥% :abeg

€202/1€/T0 SNICNA aOoIvgdd

LNIRHDYYA A0 ALID 904 LMOdHd HAQITANIAXT ANV IONIATY

NOILATUDSHEA AHIHON TS

JusuyosIed dgd
§88 :aes)
Wd FPI:E0 E20e/91/¢0



0070 0070006 00°0 0070 000006 3TES U00°€SL-BL¥-203T
Z0"9L ¥R 6EC LLTEWE ST 09L 00°000°T 1IT0 » suTToOsES 000 8¥L-8LF-203
€T ¥4 5989 TL°GT £ 18 00 0ST 2IRITPIH 000" ZZL-8LY-20CT
00°0 CO" 059 0o-o 00°0 00059 uorjesuaduc) £, 183I0M 000" 0ZL-BLY-202
BLOTE 06°9%F ‘2 97662 0T €SL'T 00 002°'% uotTsuag 0007 8TL-8LF-20C
000 007052 00°0 (/]vRdv} 007052 8TqTIoNpag SoUBINSUT TO00 9TL-BLF~E0C
£Z°T¥ 2ETLTL T 18°6G2Z 89°2LL’T 00°00E‘y 20UBANSUI BITT/Te3Tdsoy 000°9TL-8LF-202
67 LS LE"ZSE 0Z° L9 £9°L¥E 00009 Ajtanoss TeIoOSB 000" STL-8LF-202
68°G6S ZL'66%°F 8% L60°T 88°0CL’S 00°00Z°0T swrr TInd — Trozded 000 Z0L-8LF~Z0T
SOUBUSIUTRH I23UTM -~ 8LF Idsqg
SE*ge ZT°10% ‘02 CET9EL'T 887889 °Z1 00°060°'¢cE S80TATSS DTIIRIL - GLF Jdsg TRIOL
914°5% PFTG6L’S 98°£565 95 F0E’L 00 COT’ET SI0OJDBIJUOD"JUTEH ¥ Itedey 000" 0E6-SLF-E0Z
{(ve-€¥) 6E7EBS'E Q00 (6E-g80°T) 00°005°¢2 sa1Tddng sourusiuTeN ® rredsy Q00 GLL-GLY-Z0T
000 00°00% 00°0 0070 007005 ITO 3 [UTTOSED 000°9FL-5LF—20C
PO TE ST LS 057 0T 582G 00°0ZT 2IBRDTRAN 000 ZZL-GLF-20T
000 00°0%G 000 00°0 00" 0FS uorjesusdwo) €,I8IOM 000 0EL-GLP-Z0E
0T 9¢ 0F 9£2’z SETLLT 09°£92°'1 007006 uoTsudg 000" 8TL-GLF-202
00°0 007002 000 0070 00002 2TqTIONPa0 SOUBINSUT T00 9TL-GLF-202
£8°CE L7 2BE'C 6L SLT ELTLTZ T 06009 '€ sourINSUL SITT/Telrdsoy 000 9TL-5L%-207
LS CF LE*FOE 68 ¥F £9°6ZZ 007 0EG AyTInseg Teioog 000 STL-SL¥-202
Z9'Eh 01 Z6L ¥ 16 €L 06" LOL'E G0°00s’s SWIL TInd — TToZARd 000" Z0L-SL%-20Z
S90TAISE DTFFRIL — GLF adeqa
Z8 TIv FOT/G6679T ZL90P T 9E 206 TT 00° 097 '8 SOURUSIUTEH BUTINGY - £9% 3deg Telof
00" %9 00708872 00°0 00 0Z1 ‘s 00°000°8 §1030813U0H "JUTeH ? atedoy 000 0E6-E€9%-20T
60°LT Y8906 ‘T T0°L¥T 91" €8¢ 00 00E‘C soTTddng oourualuted 3 zvedey 000 GLL-E9%-20C
ooo 00°00€ 0070 000 00 00¢ TIO 3 2Ulyosed 000" 9FL-£8F-202
G566 SGT8L 69°0T o) A 00°0ET BIEOTPaN 000 EZL-£9%-20%2
000 00 0LS 000 000 00°0LS uotiesusdwod 5, I93I0M 000" 0ZL-£9%-202
7L°GE gg E€1e’'e 86081 ZL7982°T 00°009°¢ ucTsuUSd 000 8TL-£9F—202
000 00012 0070 000 0001z 9TqTIoNpe SOUBINSUT 100°91L-£9%-20%2
G0°2E 0T 28672 LL*GLT 067 LTE T 00 008°E soURINSUI 9FTT/TeITASCH 000 91L-E9P-Z0Z
56°6€ 9Z°0EE QL™ ST FLTBTICT 00°058 A3 TIND®g TeTs0g 000"STL-E£97-20¢
ST 0% 15°98£°G LB 9L BEET9‘E 0070006 |wry TTnd - TIoTIABg 0007 20L~€9%-202
BDURUSJUTERN 2uUTiInod - ¢op adag
9% L8 00°0S0“ST 0079 007066 '%0T 00°000°02T ucTionzisuo) - TeF 3ded TE10g
9% " 48 06 0S50 ‘ST 0ct0 00°066 ' ¥0T 00000021 SIOJDBAJUCT IUTEH 3 Iredey 000°0E6-1G6F-202
UCTAONIASUO]) — TSk 3dad
saInyrpuadyy
0£°95 FOZE81LL 69 26T ET 96 LTE 00T 00'00E'8LT SHONTATY TYLOL
0£79%g 70 Z88LL 69" 2GT'ET 96°LTE00T 00°00Z'8LT 000 3deg TE2IOL
0£°95 F0"Z88‘LL 69°ZST’ST 96" LTS 00T 00°002°8BLT 15 3I9¥ — sjuean siels 000°9%5-000-202
000 21daa
sanusAzay]
INAd LIHdELE 9ODVKW - 202 pund
agsa (TYREONEY) TYHION (ISWENOHT) HSYTUONI  (TYHNONTY) TYWION LES0Nd AFaNIRY ROTLAI¥DSEd FSINAN 19
1909 % TONYTIVL £202/1¢/1T0 HLNOW £20E/TE/TO £Z-z20¢
FTIYIIVAY H0d ALIAILOV HONYTIYE QLA

ZT/8

tabeg

LNIWHDIEYd A0 ALID 904 I804ddd JanLIANIJIXT

£Z0Z/TE/T0 HNIANY doIdg=d

ANV HONHATY

Jjusuyoied 4a
§gg :x88q

Wd FT:€0 €20/9T/C0



LT EL (95°%50'51) ¥ LEL'L (PP G90°TF) (00-02199) STANLIANAIXE ¥ SHANIATE A0 JIAN
FET09 09°9€6 726 LT STRYS 0F"E8E'THT 00" 0EE'FET SEANLTANAAXE THLOL
0£°95 0 a8 'L 697251 ET 96°LTE’00T 00 00T “8LT SEOANAATH TYLOL
ONNd LETILS HOLVN - Z0Z pung
£ 09 09°9¢6‘zZ6 LZTSTF’S 0% "E8ET¥T 00" 0ZE"FET STANLTANIIXT TYLOL
9c"9 ¥9°€66 ‘02 ¥9 6ET 9€°98v’T 0070272 UOTIRIZSTUTWRY ~ g8% 345 TB31OL
00'0 0000002 000 000 00°060°0% PERYILAD 9ATIRARZSTUTEPY 000°096~E87-€0%T
59765 L8°8 80°¢ ET°TT 00-0¢ SIEOTPOH 000 ZZL-CBY-20T
000 00°GT 00°0 000 00°G6T uotjesuaduo) s,233IopM 000 0ZL-ZBY7-20Z
TLT8Y 9% "95¢ 96°€E PGS EvE 0070069 uoTsusd 000 8TL-Z8%—Z0E
alondel 00°0F 000 000 00°0F STTIONPSE $OUBINSUL T00 9TL—Z8¥—Z0T
65759 26" 8LT FL6b 80 TFE 00°025 sDURINSUT SFTT/Te3TASOH 000 9TL-C8F~20T
57 Lo IF° LT 068 65" LY 0054 AjTanoaeg teIDOg 000 STL~-28F-20C
¥9°29 86°99¥% 9G°SFT ZOTEBL 06 08T WYY TInd - [foTded 0007 Z0L-Z8%-Z07
UOT1RIASTUTURY - Z8F 3daa
TETE 0T FEG 6T I9°ZEC’T 08 STF 0T 00 0%E ‘0E S0UBUSJUTRH I93UTM - /L% 3d3d Telol
szanjTpuadxy
annd LEHILS HOLYHW - 202 Dund
aEsn (TYIRHONTY) "TYNHON (ISYTIDEA) SSVIMONT  (TYRIONIY) TVHEON II9009 TEANTHY MOILITHOSEA UFINAN 1D
9049 % HONYIYL £Z0¢/TE/T0 HINOH ETOZ/TE/TO £2-220¢
TTAVTIEAY ¥04d ALIAILOV AONYTIVE QLA

Z1/9

rabeg

LNAWHOUYd J0 ALID ¥08 IHOdTE HHNLIGNAIXA

£Z02/TE/T0 DNIAONHT aoIdad

UNY HONIATT

JuswyoIeg 9q
9gg 1I2EN
WA ¥T:E0 £20¢/91/20



UCT3IRIISTUTWRY - z8§ 3deg

6T LE LOTTLE'LT 69102 £€6°82E'01 00°00L4LZ SOUBUSIUTR IDIUTM — g/ 2dad Te10I
00°00T {86°6T} 000 86 6T 000 saTtddng sourusjute 3 ITedoy 000 GLL-BLF-£0Z
6o o 00 00c ‘g 000 00°0 0C 0069 31ES 000 ESL—BLY-E0Z
Z0 9L T8 6EC LL ZFE 91" 094 00°000°1 ITO 3 suTToseEs 000 9FL-BLY-E0Z
ZLTES ZP 69 PG ST 85708 00°0ST SILOTPOW 000" ZZL-BLY-£0ZT
000 00059 o0 000 00059 uoTiesuadued $,I93IcH 000" 0CL-8LP—E0Z
YETTE 857E9F 2 EF 96T ZF9EL'T 00°002°% uoTSUSg 000 BTL-BLY-£0Z
000 00082 00°0 o0t o 007062 2TqTIoNpsg souzansul TO0 9TL~8LF-£0T
09°6¢ 9% LS9 T 9% 162 FSZPL'T 00" 00F% "% SDUBINSUL 9ITTI/{e3Ttdsol 000 8TL-BLF-£0T
L6CS ZL'S0€E 8€°99 8Z ¥FE 007069 Kytanoss (etoos 000 STL-8LP-£0C
8Z° %S E0TSGL'P LE'PBOT L6 VP9 'S 00°00% ‘0T swry TT{ng - [Toxieg 000 Z0L-BLF-£0T
SOURUIJUTRK I93UTM — §.LF 31deqg
7L°62 ET°620'8T TLTOETT LB 0E9 'L 007095 's¢e Se0TaI®§ DTFIRIL - SLp Adsg Telol
000 00°009 00°0 000 00009 gaojoeIjUON T JUTRH 3 ITedsy 000 0EE-GLP-E0T
¥8°5T 06°LOL'E 000 DT Z6Z'T 00700075 saTTddng sourusjureN 3 ITEdsy 000 SLL-GLF-£0T
00" 0 000085 000 600 007006 TIQ 3 aurloses 000 SFL-GLP-£0C
L6°9¢ €88 0£°0T 9L 1§ 00 0FT SIPTIPSN 000 E2L-GLF-£02
000 00" 0Z9 00°0 Q0°0 00029 uotiesusdmon €, iayIoN 000 0ZL-GLY~E0Z
90°1¢E BSTLGL'E PL PLI I AA AN 007000 "% uoTsUBJ 000 8TL-SLF—E0T
00" 9 00°0S¢ 000 000 00708 STYTIDNPaJ SOURINSUT TO0 9TL-GLF-E0Z
Z9°8Z 17 2962 Zr TLT 65°L8T'T 0O 0GT % 2ouRINSuUl 3FTL/[e3TdsoH 000" 91L-GLF-£0T
88°9¢ ZL BLE 60" F¥ 877122 0009 A3TINDSS TRTOOS 000" GTL-SLF-E0T
a1 LE L2 %91°9 9L 0ZL £L°5E9°¢ 0070086 SWITL TTnE — TToTéeg 000 20L-SLF-£0T
§80TATSG OTIFexl - §.p 3deg
£9°8¢ 8¢ 8EE '8T 0L"65T°T ZLTT9S'TT 007006 “6¢ SDUBRUSIUTE) SUVTIN0Y - £9§ 3ded TeIOL
ZL 68 0Z°55% 000 08" ¥¥8°P 00 00% ‘S §103oeajuc) 3uTey 3 ITedsy 000 DE6-E9F-£02
0" ¥ £§'€52°¢E 000 LT 9FT 00°00% ‘€ sat7ddng sourvusiuTe 3 rtedsy 000 GLL-E9F-£0Z
007§ 00" 00E 000 000 007008 ITO % SUTTOSES 000 9FL-£99-£02
58°GE LT 96 L9°0T £8°£5 00 08T 2IBDTPIK 000" ZZL-£9%~£0%
0090 00069 000 000 00069 uoTjesusdumo] £,19A0M 000" 0ZL-£9%-£0%
v9°0¢ LZ E€16°2 857081 €L7982°T 00 002°% uoTsuUag 000" 8TIL-£9%-£02
000 007062 0070 000 007052 S1gI3ICNpSQ S2URINSUT T00 " 9TL-£90-£0T
89" LT ET 2ZBT’'E 9L7SLT LELTE T 007 00% % |9DUBRINSUI 89ITT/Te]1TAS0H 000°9TL-£97-£0Z
ZhSE 08 61F 0L"SF 0¢ 0ET 007059 Aytanneg teToOS 000 STL-E9%-£0Z
zZ0°9¢ B8 LIL'D 66" 9FL ZT°Z8L'E 0070057071 AWEL TINd — TI0TARd 000°20L-£9%—£0T
QOURUIIUTRR IUTINCY -~ £97 3dag
saanytpusdxy
88765 LLTORE‘CE 8L ZGL'S £Z'656°0F 00T00E €L SHANTATY TYLOL
88°5¢ LLT0RE’2E BLTEZSE’'S €T 656°0F 00 GoE‘€EL 000 adsg tercl
28765 LLOVE'ZE 81.°gs5€’s €656 0F 00" Q0E“EL 15 30V - SIURIS 23E3g 000°"9%5-000-£02
oco 2deq
sanldsasy
aNNA LETELS TYJ0T - €07 pundg
aisn ("TYWHONGY)  THRNON (ISYTEDHT) HASYTMONI  (TYWHONEY) TYHMON LEDANE JIANIWYE ROILII¥DSHd YAGNAN 1D
I9ad % TINTTEL £20Z/TE/T0 HINOW €ZO0T/TE/TO £zZ-ze0e
ATAVTIVAY ¥0d ALIAILOY AINYTHA QLA

eL/L

:abeg

LNIWHDEYd 40 ALID ¥0d IE0d¥d FTUQLIANAIXKA

€20¢/TE/T0 DNIARE dOIdgdd

NV HONIAEY

JuDWUDIRg HU
ggg :Ix8sn

Wd PT:£0 £202/31/20



v o€ (05 9g672F) T8°618 ) 0S5 TI0'0T {00-6zZ672Z¢)} EHEUNLIANTAXE 3 SEANZATY J0 IEN

£1762 LETLLEZ'SL L6 9ES 'Y ELTLPE'0E 00"SEZ790T SHMOLIANAIXHE TYLOL
88766 LLTO%E"ZE BL'ZSE'S EC7656 0% 00-g0E ‘gL SENNAATT THELOL
IONNA TEAELS TY20T - £02 bund

E1°6Z LZ LLz'qL L679cC’p CLTLEGE0C 00522 90T SEHALIANAAXT TYLOL
12°9 6L°8EG'1Z T19°6EZ TI2°9Z% T 00°596°¢g UOTIPIGSTUTWRY —~ gB8¢ 3ded T®30%
00°0 00-000‘02 000 00°0 00000 08 PESUIDAQ SATIRI]STUTWDY 000°096-Z8F-£0T
8% ¥V 88°CT 80°¢ CL'IT 00°5¢ BIESTROW 000" 2Z2L-28%-£02
00°0 00°S1T 0G-Q a0 "¢ 00°6T uotiesuaduo) s, ISYIOM 000°02L-28%-£02
96" 8¢ 0G°T8E S6°EE 05" €F2 00°Ggo uoTsiag Q00 8TL-Z28F~-£0¢
000 0o-os 000 00°0 00° 05 STOTISNPa] 9OUBINSUT TO0 9TL-ZBF~LQT
Ly gs £6°80¢ FL6¥ LOTTFE 007068 aopueINSUT 8FTT/TelTdsS0H Q00°9TL-Z8F-E0T
88T LY ¥ Zs 688 BY LY g0 00T A3TINDag TETO0S 000 "STL—-28F—-EQZ
0z°25 90" LIL S5 SFT ¥6°Z8L 00°005°T aUTL TINd - TIoXAed 000°20L-TBF-£0T

goany tpusdxy

INDA LHEELS TY¥I0T - €02 pung

adsn (TVIRIONEY) TYRION (ISY¥HIDHT) TSYAADNT (TVHHONGY) "TYIION LEDANE JIANINY NHOILATZOSHA dHIHON T2
2ad % HONVIVL £20Z/TE/T0 HINOW £202/T€/T0 £2-220¢
dIgYTIVAY HOod ALIATIOY JONVTVE QL

zuamysIed :gqqd
555 :198n
Z1/8 iabeg LNARHDUYd AC ALID 904 LH0dHd TANIIANIAXE ANY dONIATT Hd FT:€0 £202/91/20

£202/T€/T0 SNIANHE dOI¥Ed



6C7L6T (zg 8e1 80T 00°0 Z9°Z6Z'612 00" FST TITT STUNLIANIdXE ? SUANHAYY A0 ILIN

Lb T LE Z6°FE6'BZT co0°0 80°TTIZ’6S5 CO0T9FT ‘88T SHANLIANEAXKE TYLOL

S0°ER 0E°96L70C 00°0 0L E0S“8BLE 00°00€ ‘662 SEUONIATY TWIOL
quandoTsASDaY DISTIUMOIY — [GF PUNLT

LY TE Z6°FER "AZT 00°0 80°1TZ'6S 00 9¥T ‘88T SHANLTANIIKIT TEIOL
LETIE Z6°PE6 'RZT 00°0 80" 112’65 00°9%T ‘88T 000 3d=sqg TE3IOL
00°00T (£F°0) 00°0 £ A 3 i 00"ETS 6 ssuadx® 3s9I193UT 000°566-000-152
00 00T GE"Q 00°0 S9°ZE9 ‘8% 00°€E£9 "8 TedIoutid-juswaITieyd 34ad 000 T66-000-152
00"0 00°000°0€ET 000 00°0 Q0° 000 “0ET PERYIIA0 SATIRIISTUTUPY 000" 096-000-152
0000t  {(00-590°T) 00°0 00°S90°T 000 TAIBS TENIDSBITUOD/TRUOTSSaJOIZ 000 008-000-T62
000 adeg

saInyrpusdgy

G0°¢q 0€°96L702 060 0L°€05°8LE 00°00E'66C SANNIATT TYLOL
SD*£h 0ET96L7°02 000 0L°£0578LE 00 008 ‘662 000 3d=g TEIOL
ocroot  (po'Eze'ed 000 00°zgege’e 00°0 STOBURTTSOSTH 000 F69-000-15C
1£°26 0c£-8TI0‘ce 00°0 0L T8E'9LE 00°00E‘66E anusAsy XEBL 000 FPOF-000-TSC
000 adag

gonusasy

JuswdoTsaAspad PI2TIUROIZ - [C7Z PuUng

aasn (TYEONEY) TYNION (ISYTIDHEA) FSYHMONT  {TVWdONHY) IVWHON IE9INd JFANITHY ROILITHISIA HITHON T2
19509 3 FONYIVL £20Z/1E/T0 HINOW €Z0Z/1E/T0 €e-zzoe
ATACTIVAY ¥04d ALIATIOY HONVTYH O

QusuYDIed gQd
585 zmEq
Z1/6 :obeg INIWHOYEYd J0 ALID HO04 IT¥C0dHd HUONLIANLAXT ANV FONIATY Wd ¥T:E0 ET0Z/9T/20

£20Z/TE/TO DNIONY doI¥dd



ZL"8 (EE0E0“6BLT) 00°0 (L9 E€607LT} (RO ¥2T96T) SEANLIANAXA 3 SHANNIATT A0 LAN

02°0T 00'¥2T9LT 000 00°000 ‘02 00 ¥ET 96T SHIALTANEdXE TILOL

Q0 001 (EE"906°2) go-o £€€°906°C 0070 SHANMATYE TYLOL

Ipung JURID SNTMMTIS - Sg7 pUng

0z 0T 00 FPET 9LT 00°0 007000702 00" FZT 96T SHANLTANAIXET THLOL

CZ'0T 00°FZT'9LT 00" 0 00°000°0Z 00°FZT 96T poo 3dea Teaol

S5 0F 00"vee‘eg 00°0 007000702 00 "FZE'RT pund J9yle ol I8ISUEIL] 000°666-000-58BZ

Jgo0"9 00°0089%T 0070 000 00°0D89FT "Adeg TEUOBRIJUOD/TRUOTSSSTOId 000°008-000~68¢

000 adag

sarnjTruadzg

0G°00T (€€°906 ') 00°0 €ET906°C 000 SUONTATY TVIOL

00°00T {€€'906'2) 000 ££T906'2 00°0 000 21d=g TE3IOL

00T00T (ge o062} 00" 0 ££°906°2 0g°o STNOSURTTSOS TR 000" ¥B9—-000—-58BC

000 1d=a

sonuassy

pPUR JUEIH SATWATIS ~ 587 pund

qasa (TYHAONTY) TYIREON (ISYTIDAT) ASYEIONI  (TVIMONTY) TYHRION LE9and aaaNsRY NOTIATHISAA FAGHAR TD
L2049 % HONYIYE £202/1€/T0 HINCH £C0T/TE/TO £Z-2202

HTEVIIYAY HOH ALIATILOV AONYIVE dLA

ZT/01 1obeg

£C0/TE/TO BNIANE doIvEd

LNAWHIYYd 40 ALID 404

juswyoIeg :4dd
888 =8N

I90dTY FENLICNAIXE ANY IANNHATI Wd PT:E0 £202/9T/20



00°00T (00 0ZZ*8T) 00°00¢ 00°0ZZ°8T 000 SHINIIANTAXE ¥ SENNIATA A0 IEN

86 TT 00*s500°ze 00°0 00" 566°F 00°000°S¢e SEANIIANTIXE "TELOL

98°¥8 00°58L°¢ 00" 002 00°STEZ T 00°000°se SANNAATY TYLOL

Ipung TeTIOWSH $,URI=213A — T0F pund

8611 00°500°22 00°0 00°566°2 00000752 SMINLIANIAXH TWIOL

86°11 00°s00°2Z 00°0 00°566°2 0070005z c00 1dsa Te10L

Q00 go*o00°'s Q0°0 00°0 00°0G0"'g SNOBURTTIOSTH D00 656-000-TOF

09 KT 00°0BO LT 0070 00°026°2 goteoo’‘oz TATSS TENIOBIJUOCS/TRUOTSSSIOIT 000°008-000-T0F

00'00T  (00°GL) 000 oc*sL 000 seTTddng esurusjuteH 3 ITedoy 000°5LL-000-T10%

000 3deqg

saInlTpuadxyg

98°F8 06 68L7°¢ 007002 00751212 0GT000°s2 SHONIATY TYLOL

98°'78 00 G8LE 00002 00°STZ’1E 0000052 000 3deg Te3oL

00700T  (po-y0zZ‘0T) oo0°o 00" %0z ‘02 00°0 SNORURTTHDSTH 000" ¥69-000-T0F

ZZ°0Z 00"686°¢F 00002 00 TTIC'T 00°000°G anusasy Tejtded payngrilue) 000°¥L9-000-T0F

060 00700002 0070 000 007000702 Butpung Texepedg Ioyjo 000°825-000-10F

000 3daa

SonusaAsyd

PUNg TETICWSW €,URI=2123A - T0F Dung

aasn (TYIREONGY) TYHION (ISYTEDHA) ASYHUONT  (TYHHONEY) TWIRION 1E90Nd JEaNIHNY NOILIHoSHd VATHON 19
1904 & HONYTYL £20Z2/TE/T0 HINOW £Z202/TE/TO £Z-220¢

ATIFTIVAY H0d ALIATILOW AONYIVE LA

ZT/11 robeg

LNIWHDUMYd AC ALID 904 IMOd¥Ed ddNLIANIIXI

£Z0Z/TE/TO ONIANA TOIdHEd

ONY HONHEAEA

juawyoIed :gd
ggg IlsN
Hd $T:E€0 £<C0Z/9T/Z0



SE" ¥R (P6°9LZ°Z0E} (F2-98£‘Z8T) F6°"6TE'8ET (00" LG86'EOT) SHANLIANZIXH ¥ SIONIATY A0 LIk

EETLS T9°G5L27882'T L¥ €3£ 7502 BETGOGE99°T 00" 18L°T06 2 SQNOd TIV - SHINLIANEIXE T¥I0L
18769 L9866 ‘5E6 £8"9L6°T2 ££°528°108°T 00" FZBLEL'E SUNOA TTY - SHEANIATY TYLOL
z9°62 8zrzsz’z (67 L85°'L) ZL'L¥6 00°00Z°€E SEINITANTIIXA 3 SHANIATY A0 IAN
Z8°€6 6L 0LO'E 6Z LGS L 197629 LET 00"00L'9FT STHALIANIIXE TYLOTL
SF 26 L9 ZZTETT 000 €E LLG'BET 007006671 SHANIART TLOL
IONOd MEMAS - 065 pund
Z8°CE 6E"0LO'6 G2 LSS L T9°629°LET 00°00L 97T SHINLTIANIAXKT TELOL
Z8°€6 6E£°0L0'6 6T LGS L 19629 “LET 00°00L 9FT 000 2deq Te30l
000 00 00T FT 00" 0 0oto A0 00T FT uotierosadag 000 896-000-065
00" e 00" 000 ‘0% 000 0070 0C 000 ‘0% PRSUISAD SATIRIISTUTERY 000°096-000-065
000 0000001 000 Q0°0 00°006°0T S1030RIFUCY *JUTRH 5 Itedsy 000 0E6—000-065
15769 9E 6L ¥6°£2e F9 905 T goTooe’e S2TITTTIN 000°026—000-0585
09°86 00 BT o0 00725901 0o 00901 spucg 3 SOURINSUT 000" 0T6-000-065
00°0 00°005 T 4] 000 00700 T23Uay wWwIoyTun 000" GT8-000-065
SL*0ZF  (S58°981°08) 0T €£S8°E S8"98T°S0T 00°000°Se *ATIZ TENIDRIIUC]/[EUCTSS2FOIJ 000" C08-000-066
00°00T  (Zb"LE) TV LE ZhTLE 000 go1Tddng sourusjuTeRr 3 Jtedoy 000" GLL~0D0D-06S
68°2S ZETIRT £L°6C 89 "8G 00" GOE 2IPDTPOH 0007 2ZL-000-065
0070 00" 005 0o°o 0cto 00°00¢% uctiesusduic) s,I5HI0OM 000" 0ZL-000-06S
92" 8¢ €9 TFL'G B8 661 LE*85G'E 00°00£‘6 uotTsuad 000 81L-000-06%
000 007004 00°0 000 007004 aTqTIoNpsg SOURINSUT TO0"8TL-000-06G
SLUgs 8% Z91'% ST 869 ZGTLER'Y 0000076 2ouBINSUl SITT/TRITAS0H 000 9TL-000-065
P 8¥ 9.7 T2L 667921 F¥T°8LY 00°00F% ‘T AjTaInoes TerIDos 000*STL-000-0665
9L 8% TT 9RL'TT Z1°880°Z 687 CTZ'TT 0C 000‘€Z SWIL TInd - TToIded 000" Z0L~-000-066
000 2d2a
SOINITPUIARY
S 26 L9°ZZE'TIT 0070 €CLLS"BET 00°006°6%T SEONIATE THLOL
S¥ 26 L8 ZZE'TT 00°0 £E€7LLG78¢ET 00" 606 ‘6FT 000 3dad Te30L
000 007006°T 000 0070 00" 006°T SIUPWISIAUL UO IS3I3JUL 000 F99-000-065
£9°€6 L9TzZen ‘6 000 EETLLG'BET 00" 000°8%T SOOTAIDS IDIMST 000°929-000-06%
000 3dea
SENUDADY
JRad ¥AMIAS - 066 pung
aasn (TYREONGY) TYREON (ISVMIDAG) HISYTIONT  ("TYWMONSY) TYHION 1I5ANT HANTNY NOTIFTIDSEA HIERAN T
1ead % AONYTYE E£20Z/TE/TO HINOH ETOT/TE/TO £T-T202
ATAVTIEAY ¥od ALIATIIOV AINYIVE QLK

JuswyoIed :gd
$55 rIsen
Wd ¥T:€0 £202/91/20

EC0C/TE/TO DNIANE dOI¥dd

rAVEAL rebeg INARHZEYd 40 ALID ¥0d I¥CdUE AUNLICNAIXE ONY FNNEATI



" Gredit Limit

Credlts . Purchasas

Cash Advances

Page 2 of 4

Account Number: X0GO( X000 XXX 1546
Statement Closing Date; 01/26/23

Total Activity

Name and Actount Number
NANCY R STODDARD
KHHHK OO XKAX 7241 35,000 $0.00 $20.00 $0.00 $20,00
TY-J WOLTHUIS .
KKK KKK XXX 7874 $3.000 50,00 $370.28 $0.00 $370.28
SHANNON STUTZ -
000000000 8125 $5.000 $23.89 $4,600,35 $0.00 $4,576.46
erAccoUntACVILY.
JIM DUBY Cradit Limlt Cradits Purchases Cash Advances Total Actlvity
XXXX XXXX XXXX 1892 33,000 30.00 - $75.27 $0.00 §75.27
Post Date Tran Date  Reference Number Transaction Description VCN Amount
01723 01/20 55453703021042000007428 ADVANCE AUTO PARTS #17 KALAMAZOG MI $12.25
01725 01724 18270213024001130758725 EBAY 0*14-08619-26368 SAN JOSE CA §63.02
CAMRON J BOEKHOVEN " Credit Limit Credits Purchases Cash Advances Total Activity
JOORX MK XXHK 8114 $3,000 $0.00 $820.48 $0.00 $820.48
Post Date Tran Date  Reference Number Transaction Description VEN Amount
12/30 12429 55432862363204735412482 LOWES #01110* PORTAGE MI $23.88
12/30 12428 75428172363238200009169 TED S APPLIANCE KALAMAZOC M| $380.00
01/05 01/04 25247803004000267 147064 GORDIE BOUCHER FORD OF 4144274141 Wl $170.47
01/09 01/05 05140483006710034304127 HARDING'S MARKET #36 PARGHMENT Ml $5.98
0111 01/03 02305373310100124337275 MENARDS KALAMAZCO EAST COMSTOCK TOWN MI $12.55
0112 91711 55309583011838000010021 RIDGE PARTS 0030721 KALAMAZGQ M} $29.99
0113 0112 05436843512200053388777 LAKELAND ASPHALT CORPO 269-964-1720 M $197.51
NANCY R STODDARD Credit Limit Credits Purchases Cash Advances Total Activity
SO XXX XXXX 7241 $5,000 $6,00 520,00 $0.00 $20.00
Post Date Tran Date  Reference Number Fransaction Description - _-VCN - Amount
01/25 01/24 8230509302400001 5609677 SQUARESFACE INC, NEW YORK NY "$20.00
TY JWOLTHUIS Credit Limit Credits Purchases Cash Advances Tataf Al;.'llvitv |
HKKKK XHKAKK KHKXK 7874 $3.000 $0.00 $370.28 $C.00 $370.28
Post Date Tran Date  Reference Number T tlon Description VN Amount
01/11 0110 05436643010200052937497 LAKELAND ASPHALT CORPO 269-984-1720 M| . $280.16
0118 01118 02305373017100127745592 MENARDS KALAMAZOG EAST COMSTOCK TOWN M| ¢ §90.12
SHANNON STUTZ Crsqﬂt Limit . Credits | Purchases Cash Advanca_s . Total Activity
JOOKX HHXX XXX 9125 $5,000 $23.89 . . $4,600.35 $0.00 . $4,576.46
Post Datg Tran Pate " Referanca Number Transaction Description VCN ) Amount
12{28 12/28 55432862382204330474904 SPECTRUM 858-707-7325 MO $119.98
01109 0107 82711163007000008483283 PIXELVINE FREEPORT M! $89.7:
91711 3110 62712913011000000516072 CORPORATE TECHNOLOGIES 7018934056 MN $106.27
41713 0110 023056373011100386944757 OFFICEMAX/CFFICEDEPT#3 KALAMAZOO M) -323.39
01/18 01/13 82711163013000008516087 PIXELVINE FREEPCRT Mi 75.00
g1/16 01/15 82712913016000000227855 CORPORATE TECHNOLOGIES 7018934056 MN $428.26
[ Tare 01/18 55500363016872749575531 MARANA GROUP 8008533121 MI $467.06
01720 91719 05410193016105166364946 QUILL CORPORATION B00-982-3400 5C $70.25

(trangactions continued cn next page)

Q000000 - 000872 - G001 - 0002 - 2




Page 3 of4

Account Numbar: XXXX XX XXXX 1548
Statement Closing Data: 01/26/23

2 S : Ry el ]
01/20 0119 15314683019009788351540 CONCORD THEATRICALS GO NEW YORK NY $2,125.00
01/23 01/20 023053730210006203414 57 USPS PO 2549110002 KALAMAZOO M] §27.75
01/25 01/23 8514051302490001 8300027 CORNERSTCNE OFFICE 8YS AVALENGE@GORN M| $930.86

01/26 01/26 55432863026202264027744 SPECTRUM 855-707-7328 MD §148.97




KALAMAZOO AREA TRANSPORTATION STUDY

CALL TO ORDER

TECHNICAL COMMITTEE MEETING
MINUTES JANUARY 12, 2023 - 9:30 A.M.

The January 12, 2023 Technical Committee Meeting was called to order at 9:30 a.m. at Kalamazoo

Metro, by Chair Minkus.

ROLL CALL

Meeting attendance was recorded on the sign-in sheet. Introductions were made by all present.

MEMBERS PRESENT

Mickey Bittner
Nolan Bergstrom
Heather Bowden
Kerry DenBraber
Eric Feldt

Josh Grab
Rachael Grover
Todd Hackenberg
Jamie Harmon
Robert Henderson
Jeff Heppler

Jim Hoekstra

Joel Hoort

Anna Horner
Anthony Ladd
John Lovely

Ryan Minkus, Chair
Dennis Randolph
Ryan Russell
Kathy Schuliz
Pratik Sharma
Paul Sotherland
Jodi Stefforia, Vice-Chair
Nancy Stoddard
Greg Viiststra
George Waring

OTHERS PRESENT

Phil Doorlag
Bart Franklin
Mariin Janssen

Village of Paw Paw (Wightman & Associates)
City of Kalamazoo

Michigan Department of Transportation, Statewide Planning
Michigan Department of Transportation, TSC
City of Portage

Michigan Department of Transportation, Region
Kalamazoo County

Village of Lawton

City of Portage

Van Buren Public Transit

Village of Augusta

Road Commission of Kalamazoo County

Van Buren County Road Commission
Oshtemo Township

City of Kalamazoo

Texas Township

Road Commission of Kalamazoo County

City of Kalamazoo

Village of Schoolcraft

Central County Transportation Authority

City of Portage

KATS Citizens Advisory Committee
Comstock Township

City of Parchment

Kalamazoo County Transportation Authority
City of Kalamazoo

Wightman & Associates
HRC
Kalamazoo County Transportation Authority

TC Minutes 1/12/23 Page 1 of 5 -



Megan Mickelson Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study

Fred Nagler Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study
Juan Ruelas Rathco
Elizabeth Rumick Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study
Hailey Savola ROWE
Steve Stepek, AICP Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study
Ali Townsend Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study

CHANGES OR ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

There were no changes or additions to the agenda.

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

Hoekstra moved, and it was duly seconded by Heppler, “to approve the agenda of the January 12,
2023 Technical Committee Meeting.” MOTION CARRIED.

MINUTES FROM THE DECEMBER 8, 2022 MEETING

Minkus reported some changes to the attendance portion of the minutes.

Hoekstra moved, and it was duly seconded by Schultz, “fo approve the minutes with the
attendance corrections, from the December 8, 2023 Technical Committee Meeting.” MOTION
CARRIED.

POLICY COMMITTEE REPORT

Stepek reported on behalf of the Policy Committee that the Technical Committee recommended
Transportation Improvement Program Amendments were approved. Regional traffic signal
coordination was discussed.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Sotherland stated non-motorized progress in the Kalamazoo region is getting statewide notice and
thanked the group for their efforts and hard work.

METRO COMPREHENSIVE OPERATIONAL ANALYSIS PRESENTATION

Minkus introduced Schuiltz for the Metro Comprehensive Operational Analysis (COA) presentation.
Metro hired consultant Foursquare Integrated Transportation Planning for the COA which started in
October 2021. The final report is expected in February 2023. The last COA was completed in 2010.
Schultz summarized the 2010 COA changes Metro implemented noting it took six years to apply
them. Metro anticipates a similar time frame for the current COA. The initial analysis included
collecting ridership data by bus stop, review of route alignments including destinations, and a study of
what areas of the community are well-served and those that are missing setvice. Metro’s goal is to
have easy-to-Use routes, an easy-to-understand bus system, and a robust mix of destinations
including housing, grocery stores, medical facilities, schools, and employers. Schultz displayed maps
of transit need and maps of transit potential including minarity and low-income poputations. Employer
location, land use information, and ridership levels by bus stop were reviewed to determine the
greatest need for bus services. Outreach is a large and important compaonent of the COA. Initial
meetings began with the Centrat County Transportation Authority/Kalamazoo County Transportation
Authority boards in December 2021. Extensive outreach has continued with the board along with the
public, drivers, stakeholders, and other agencies. Foursquare presented draft recommendations of
service scenarios at the beginning of December 2022, The scenarios include concentrating the fixed
route bus routes near high density areas and transit supportive land use, interlining bus routes and
the introduction of Microtransit. Lots of questions remain on the details of Microtransit including if

TC Minutes 1/12/23 Page 2 of 5



service will be outsourced, whether a marketing firm or additional staff are required, fee structure,
type of vehicles, hours of service, and location of service. Schultz distributed and discussed
Kalamazoo Metro/CCTA Comprehensive Operational Analysis Draft Microtransit Zone map showing
four zones. After the COA final report is received in February 2023, Metro Staff will perform extensive
planning to develop a timeline for implementation of recommendations. Minor changes could
potentially begin to be implemented in September 2023. In response to Minkus' question, Schultz
answered Muskegon, Detroit, Grand Rapids, and Battle Creek all have Microtransit service. In
discussion with Stoddard, it was noted that contracting or outsourcing Microtransit could speed up the
introduction and application of service. Schultz clarified for Heppler, Microtransit would allow
transportation from a Microtransit zone to a fixed route bus stop, or even within a zone. Along with
displaying fixed route maps, Schultz detailed the more substantial planned bus route modifications.
Schutz's presentations are available on the Metro website at kmetro.com/coa.

2020 URBANIZED AREA POPULATION

Stepek reported the census data was released earlier this month. This defines Metropolitan Planning
Organization {MPQ) and small urban areas. The urbanized area population determines how much
money the MPO obtains for staffing and funding. The Kalamazoo urban area lost 5,000 people from
the last census in 2010. Geographies of the urban areas are expected to be released toward the end
of the month. Then, we will be able to determine whether or not Mattawan became its own small
urbanized area. Paw Paw/L.awton is only listed as Paw Paw in the new data. Our MPO funding will be
functionally flat. Tweaks may need to be made to 2024 projects. Kalamazoo Area Transportation
Study wili then begin the process of reviewing and approving the functional classification system for
the area. Stepek responded to Feldt's question by stating the comparison is to the 2010 census. If
there is a change not accounted for any errors in the 2020 data, no appeals can be made. The next
census will be conducted in 2030. In response to Sotherland’s inquiry, Stepek responded MPO
processes and procedures will remain the same with Mattawan even if it becomes its own separate
area.

CONTRIBUTED SERVICE UPDATE

The fiscal year-to-date contributed service summary is a meeting enclosure. Stepek asked attendees
to turn in timesheets. |t is especially important because we are behind where we should be for the
fiscal year. Time spent on Master Plan updates is eligible. Contact Stepek if you have questions on
eligible activities. Minkus reminded participants to use the new timesheet form.

FY 2024 UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM

Stepek reported with receipt of the new urbanized area population, Kalamazoo Area Transportation
Study (KATS) sent out new third-party match agreements. Please return the agreements to KATS as
soon as possible. Let KATS Staff know of any large projects planned in fiscal year 2024 so they can
be incorporated into the budget.

NON-MOTORIZED DATA SHARING DISCUSSION

Minkus stated that Sotherland pointed out Google Maps non-motorized layer for our Kalamazoo
region is not accurate. The Non-Motorized Subcommittee discussed sharing the KATS MPO more
accurate GIS data with Google. The Subcommittee would like the groups’ opinion on how to proceed
with the data sharing, or whether agencies are interested in the idea. Sotherland mentioned the
Kalamazoo region non-motorized layer is much more developed than it is porirayed on Google Maps.
Grover expressed interest in the idea. No members were opposed to sharing non-motorized data with
Google. Stepek mentioned KATS non-motorized mapping does not distinguish between non-
motorized trails, dedicated lanes, and bicycle friendly roads as Google Maps does. KATS is not going
to make an engineering judgement to define a road as bicycle friendly. In response to Horner's
inquiry, Mickelson answered to continually send non-motorized data updates. Referring to her Google
Data share handout, Mickelson explained Google requires high quality, accurate data. KATS creates

TC Minutes 1/12/23 Page 3 of 5



a profile with Google, enters into a partnership agreement, and sends data which is then reviewed
before it is potentially posted.

SUBCOMMITTEE UPDATES

NON-MOTORIZED SUBCOMMITTEE- The next meeting is scheduled for January 18, 2023 at 11:00
a.m,

COMPLETE STREETS IMPLEMENTATION PLAN- The kickoff meeting is scheduled for January 19,
2023 from 10:00 a.m. to 11:00 a.m. Let Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study (KATS) Staff know if
you are interested in volunteering.

TRAFFIC SIGNAL COORDINATION- The first Traffic Signal Coordination Subcommittee meeting will
be held directly after this meeting. Everyone is welcome.

FUTURE EDUCATIONAL TOPICS

Minkus invited members to share information or projects with each other during Technical Committee
meetings. Interested members could share a 15-to-20-minute presentation that could be beneficial to
others. Presentations could be accommodated quarterly. To plan a presentation, reach out to Stepek
or Minkus.

BYLAW REVIEW

Stepek reported no comments were received on the Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study (KATS)
Technical Committee Bylaws. Please read the bylaws and submit comments by March 1, 2023.

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION UPDATES

Henderson updated Van Buren Public Transit is almost fully staffed with drivers. Schultz reported
Metro is wrapping up the bus stop sign project. Metro is attempting to disallow passengers requesting
a bus stop at a major intersection or crossroads. Let Schultz know if you notice a bus stop sign that
should be removed, moved, or added.

STATUS REPORTS
ROADS-

DenBraber provided the Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) update that the M-96
Burgess Drive to Augusta mill and fill will start May 1, 2023, U.S. 131 over Amtrak tracks at Kl Ave. is
ptanned to be let on May &, 2023. The U.S. 131 mili and overlay project will begin in March. The M-40
project in Lawton is starting in March. 1-84 Portage Road project current configurations will remain the
same through winter. Setting beams and pouring decks for the bridge wark should be complete by the
end of January,

Heppler reported the Village of Augusta is planning the 2023 water project. Heppler expressed
concern about a high number of accidents at East G Avenue and M-96.

Ladd reported the City of Kalamazoo Patterson Street bridge deck replacement project will begin the
last week of February and continue through August. The project will include full closure with detours
posted. The 2023 Howard Street project will be bid in the next couple months. Whites Road and
Westnedge Avenue projects are expected to be bid in early summer with construction beginning in
2023 carrying over into 2024,

TC Minutes 1/12/23 Page 4 of 5




Harmon reported City of Portage Shaver Road and Portage Road projects will be in the February bid
letting. The remainder of the 2023 projects will be bid in the next couple months. Design has begun
on 2024 projects.

Hoekstra reported Road Commission of Kalamazoo County (RCKC) tree work at 12t Street and 24t
Street is complete. All projects are out for bid. There are a lot of spring projects. Project Information
Meetings are planned in March and April. Two projects will be in the February bid letting.

LAND USE/PLANNING AND ZONING-

Heppler, Village of Augusta, and Stoddard, City of Parchment, thanked Nagler of Kalamazoo Area
Transportation Study for receipt of PASER Rating Data,

Stefforia reported the Comstock Township Master Plan update is underway.

Grover reported Kalamazoo County will be updating its Solid Waste Management Plan to a Materials
Management Plan based on recent |egislation that passed.

Feldt stated the City of Portage is updating its Comprehensive Plan. He spread the word about the
city's online survey.

Lovely reported Texas Township is performing major and minor zoning updates.

NEW BUSINESS

Minkus announced the PASER Training notification went out. Sign up for training if you need to get
certified. The Road Commission of Kalamazoo Gounty Railroad Update Meeting is scheduled for

January 19, 2023 at 1:00 p.m.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

No public comments were made.

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting adjourned at 10:45 a.m.

The next meeting of the Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study Technical Committee will be held on
Thursday, February 9, 2023 at 9:30 a.m.

Approved 2/9/23 (er)

TC Minutes 1/12/23 Page 5 of 5




MEMORANDUM

To: Mayor Britigan, Vice-Mayor Jordan, and Commissioners
From: Jon Heasley, Kindleberger Arts Commission Chairperson
Date: February 17,2023

Re: Approval of the Reduction of the KAC Historical Balance

Background: Since the Kindleberger Arts Commission was created by the Parchment City Commission,
they have been charged with administrating and managing all aspects for the Kindleberger Summer
Festival of the Performing Arts. In addition, we are responsible for the Summer Concert Series on
Sunday nights. As you know, we do this with Grants and Donor giving. The City does not participate
financially in any of our endeavors. The City is very gracious with their in-kind contributions which helps
us offset expenses. Until 2015, previous administrations in both the City and KAC have condoned deficit
spending by the KAC. The result of this is a substantial negative balance in the KAC account. Beginning
in 2016, with new leadership, the KAC has been self-sustaining. With guidance from Mayor Britigan and
Manager Stoddard, it has been made very clear that there would be no deficit spending. We need to
make what we spend. With that in mind, the last 7 years have shown positive revenue.

Discussion: This is currently a liability on the books of the city; addressing the negative cash balance in
the KSF fund is the most fiscally responsible, transparent action that can be taken at the moment. ! will
allow the KSF to move forward, allow the City’s audited financial statements to include the festival as a
separate fund, and set up the KSF and the City for a clean succession when the time comes. The City
Commission will be adding this into their budget process for the 2023-2024 and the 2024-2025 budget
planning.

Recommendation:
Motion to reduce the Kindleberger Arts Commission historical balance in two increments of the
following amounts: $36,317.54 on July 1, 2023 and $36,317.53 on July 1, 2024,



.

Nancx Stoddard
m

From: City of Parchment <records@parchment.org>

Sent: Monday, January 16, 2023 2:44 PM

To: Nancy Stoddard

Subject: : FW: New Contact Form Submission from Katie Brandel

From: Katie Brandel [mailto:no-reply@parchment.org)
Sent: Monday, January 16, 2023 11:37 AM

To: records@parchment.org

Subject: New Contact Form Submission from Katie Brandel

Katie Brandel

(616) 818-5611

by Ut

stepupkidsrunclub@gmail.com

My name is Katie Brandel, and I'm the owner and head coach of Step Up Kids Run Club, an empowerment through fitness
program for elementary and middle school age children. Our mission is to create spaces where kids of ail fitness levels can
have fun being active, learning running skills and learning empowarment principles like power words (examples: | am strong, |
am powerful, I am focused), positive thinking, resilience and goal setting. It's a unique and powerful curriculum that helps
children learn growth mindset in a very kinetic, impactful way.

I would like to partner with Kindlaberger Park to host a spring season for Step Up Kids Run Club in Parchment. | am hoping to
have an 8-week program from April to May. If this is something you would be interested in bringing to the Parchment
community, | would love the chance to talk in more detail about the program and what a partnership would look like. You can
reach me via this email address or by phone at 616-818-5611.

You can find more information about our program on our website: StepUpKidsRunClub.com.

I look forward to hearing from you!
Have a great day,

Katie Brandel
Owner/Coach




ACCESS AGREEMENT

THIS ACCESS AGREEMENT ("Agreement") has been made as of
, 2023 ("Effective Date"), by and between THE CITY OF PARCHMENT, a
Michigan municipal corporation, of 650 S. Riverview Drive, Parchment, Michigan 49004
("Grantor"), and GLOBAL REMEDIATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company, of 113 Peachtree Street NE, Atlanta Georgia 30303
("Grantee").

Recitals

A, Grantor owns the real estate located in the City of Parchment, Kalamazoo County,
Michigan, as legally described on Exhibit A attached to this Agreement, subject to easements,
restrictions, encumbrances, and reservations affecting it ("Grantor Parcel").

B. Grantee owns the real estate located in the City of Parchment, Kalamazoo County,
Michigan, as legally described on Exhibit B attached to this Agreement, subject to easements,
restrictions, encumbrances, and reservations affecting it ("Grantee Parcel™).

C. Grantor Parcel and Grantee Parcel are contiguous. Grantor desires to grant Grantee
access for ingress to and egress from Grantee Parcel, over and across Grantor Parcel, for purposes
of installing fencing through the Grantor Parcel and to maintain such fencing.

D. Grantor and Grantee and their respective heirs, personal representatives,
distributees, executors, administrators, successors and assigns are referred to in this Agreement
collectively as "Owners" and individually as "Owner." Grantor Parcel and Grantee Parcel are
referred to in this Agreement collectively as "Parcels" and individually as "Parcel.”

Agreement

In consideration of the facts described above and other good and valuable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are acknowledged, Grantor and Grantee agree
as follows:

I. Grant of Access. Grantor grants for the benefit of the Grantee Parcel, access over,
("Access Area™) across and through the Grantor Parcel for the installation, maintenance and use
of fencing, and all replacements thereof to be located on the Grantor Parcel and depicted on
Exhibit C attached to this Agreement, along with any other fencing to be installed on the Grantor
Parcel, and to remove any existing fencing currently located on the Grantor Parcel (collectively,
the "Fencing"), subject to easements, restrictions, encumbrances, and reservations affecting it.
The Access Area is to be used solely for access to Grantor Parcel by Grantee, its tenants, agents,
employees, contractors, invitees, licensees, guests, and customers (collectively, "Affiliates"). The
parties agree that there shall be a 20 foot wide strip of property within the Granfor Parcel and
outside of the fenced area on the Grantor Parcel to be used for the proposed development of a non-
motorized trail.



2. Enjoyment of Property. Grantee must conduct its activities under this Agreement
so as not to interfere unreasonably with Grantot's peaceful enjoyment of Grantor Parcel.

3. Obstructions. Except for the Fencing to be installed or removed, the Access Area
is to remain open and unobstructed by any buildings, fences, trees, barriers, banners, or other
structures, so as to permit the Grantee and its Affiliates unimpeded access across the Access Area
in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. Furthermore, the location of the Access Area
may not be changed, altered or modified in any way without the written approval of the Owners.

4. Repair and Maintenance. During the term of this Agreement, Grantee must
maintain and repair, at its sole cost, the portion of the Fencing located on the Grantor Parcel in a
good condition. After the expiration of the term of this Agreement, Grantor must maintain and
repair, at its sole cost, the portion of the Fencing located on the Grantor Parcel in a good condition.

5. Improvements. Except as otherwise provided herein, each Owner may upgrade or
otherwise make improvements to the Fencing only upon the advance written consent of the other
Owner, which consent may not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned.

6. Encumbrances. The Access Area is made subject to all covenants, conditions,
restrictions, encumbrances, and easements of record as of the date this Agreement is recorded.
The Owners acknowledge that each Owner may grant other easements over and across their
respectively owned Parcels so long as such easements do not interfere with the use of the Access
Area as provided under this Agreement,

7. Property Taxes. The Owner of the Grantor Parcel will pay all real property taxes
and special assessments levied against Grantor Parcel, without any reimbursement from the Owner
of Grantee Parcel for any portion thereof. The Owner of Grantee Parcel will pay all real property
taxes and special assessments against Grantee Parcel, without any reimbursement from the Owner
of Grantor Parcel for any portion thereof.

8. Insurance and Indemnification. Each Owner will carry insurance to protect it in
connection with the ownership, use, and maintenance of the Access Area. Each Owner will farnish
to the other party, if requested, evidence of the insurances described in this Paragraph. Each Owner
will indemnify and hold the other Owner harmless from all claims, judgments, costs and expenses
(including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees) incurred by the second Owner arising in
connection with or as a direct or indirect result of the first Owner's exercise of the rights granted
or breach of the obligations imposed in this Agreement.

0. Compliance with Laws. Each Owner will comply with all applicable laws, codes,
ordinances, rules, and regulations (collectively, "Applicable Laws") governing the maintenance
and use of the Access Area.

10. Damage. If cither Owner, or an Affiliate of cither Owner, causes any damage to
the Access Area or the other Owner's Parcel, then the responsible party will immediately cause
and pay for the repair of such damage.




11. Notices. All notices, requests, claims, demands, and other communications
hereunder must be in Writing and delivered by electronic mail, personal delivery, a recognized
overnight courier service, postage prepaid registered mail, return receipt requested to the parties
at their addresses first indicated above, or to such other address or such additional recipient as any
Owner may have furnished to the others in writing in accordance herewith. All notices will only
be effective upon receipt or refusal.

12, Duration and Effect. The Access Arca burdens the Grantor Parcel and benefits
the Grantee. This Agreement will continue in effect and constitute a covenant running with the
land for a period of five (5) years from the Effective Date; but nothing contained in this Agreement
will be construed as a conveyance by Grantor of its rights in the fee to Grantor Parcel. Grantor
and Grantee will automatically be released from all Hability thereafter arising under this
Agreement upon conveyance of their respective entire interest in the real property burdened or
benefited by this Agreement.

13, Amendments. This Agreement may be amended, modified or terminated (in whole
or in part) from time to time by written document executed and acknowledged by all of the Owners,
and will not otherwise be amended, modified or terminated during the term hereof,

14, Owners Bound. The terms and conditions of this Agreement bind and benefit each
Owner and their respective heirs, personal representatives, distributees, executors, administrators,
successors, and assigns.

15, Governing Law. This Agreement is governed by and will be construed in
accordance with the laws of the State of Michigan.

16, Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire understanding of Grantor
and Grantee and the parties acknowledge that there have been no representations or understandings
other than those expressly set forth in this Agreement.

7. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each
such counterpart being deemed an original and all such counterparts taken together constltutmg
but one and the same instrument.

The Grantor and Grantee signed this Access Agreement as of the date first set forth
above.

CITY OF PARCHMENT

By

Nancy R. Stoddard
Its City Manager

Grantor



27735211

GLOBAL REMEDIATION AND
ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES LLC

By

David G. Massengill
Its President
Grantee




EXHIBIT A

Grantor Parcel Legal Description

City of Parchment, Kalamazoo County, Michigan:

BEGINNING AT THE NORTH 1/4 POST OF SECTION 3, TOWN 2 SOUTH, RANGE 11 WEST, CITY OF PARCHMENT,
KALAMAZOC CCUNTY, MICHIGAN; THENCE NORTH 8¢ DEGREES 24 MINUTES 58 SECONDS EAST ALONG THE
NORTH LINE QF SAID SECTION, 1,014.78 FEET TO A POINT 18506 FEET (RECORDED AS 165 FEET) WEST OF THE
CENTER LINE OF THE PENN CENTRAL RAILROAD (FORMERLY LS & M8 RAILROAD); THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES
54 MINUTES 50 SECONDS WEST PARALLEL WITH SAID CENTER LINE, 1,436.56 FEET TO THE 80UTH LINE OF THE
NORTH FRAGTIONAL 1/4 OF SAID SECTION; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 47 MINUTES 20 SECONDS WEST, 240.00
FEET TO AN INTERMEDIATE TRAVERSE LINE ALONG THE KALAMAZOO RIVER; THENCE ALONG SAID TRAVERSE
LINE FOR THE NEXT 6 COURSES: NORTH 35 DEGREES 3¢ MINUTES 44 SECONDS WEST, 99.75 FEET: THENCE
NORTH 23 DEGREES 17 MINUTES 29 SECONDS WEST, 183.37 FEET; THENCE NORTH 23 DEGREES 17 MINUTES 29
SECONDS WEST, 127,57 FEET, THENCE NORTH 33 DEGREES 44 MINUTES 03 SECONDS WEST, 362.26 FEET:
THENCE NORTH 28 DEGREES 35 MINUTES 04 SECONDS WEST, 486.54 FEET; THENCE NORTH 29 DEGREES 38
MINUTES 48 SECONDS WEST, 383.86 FEET TO THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 3; THENCE NORTH 80
DEGREES 27 MINUTES 06 SECONDS EAST THEREON, 153.14 FEET TO THE PLACE OF BEGINNING. TOGETHER
WITH ALL LAND LYING BETWEEN THE INTERMEDIATE TRAVERSE LINE AND THE BANK OF THE KALAMAZOO
RIVER.

Tax Parcel No. 06-03-201 ~001




EXHIBIT B

Grantee Parcel Legal Description

Township of Cooper, Kalamazoo County, Michigan:

Begining on the Souih fine of Secton 34, Town 1 South, Range 11 Wes, 65 fest West ofte center ne of NYC RR:
thence Northery parallel with the said raiioad, 1200 feet: thence West parallel with the South section line, 700 fest: hence
Southerty paralle with said raioad, 1200 fes to the South section ine; thence East thereon 700 feetto the place of
beginning.

Tax Parcel No.: 02-34-401-020




EXHIBIT C

Site Plan

Pedestrian Path (proposed/approximate)
Property Boundary (approximate)
== Fencing (proposed/approximate)




MEMORANDUM

To: Mayor Britigan, Vice-Mayor Jordan, and Commissioners
From: Michael Richmond, Parchment City Assessor

Date: February 17,2023

Re: Resolution Waiving Penalty Fees and Interest for Failure to File a Property Transfer Affidavit
(PTA)

Background: In the current phase of the state Audit of Minimum Assessing Requirements (AMAR), the
audit requires that a detailed resolution on how any fees and interest collected on Property Transfer
Affidavits (PTA) will be distributed back to all authorities that are entitled. The other option is the
proposed resolution to waive fines and interest.

Discussion: The City currently holds the right to assess fines and interest on PTA'S filed past 45 days of
the sale. Based on all records available, the fine for a late PTA has never been collected for any parcel in
the City of Parchment.

To collect these monies, a detailed resolution explaining how monies from these fines would be
distributed, would have to be written. The City's attorney would have to be involved in the writing of a
resolution of this nature. The City would receive a minuscule amount of these monies, as all taxing
authorities would have to receive their fair share. For instance, a $45.00 PTA fine (maximum allowed by
state law) would have multiple checks disbursed for very small amounts to multiple taxing authorities
such as schools, KRESA, etc. The clerical time spent, along with costs associated with distribution of
refunds to these authorities would be a large burden on all involved with little to no return.

Recommendation: Therefore, it is my recommendation that the City adopts the Motion to adopt the
Resolution Waiving Penalty Fees and Interest for Failure to File a Property Transfer Affidavit.

Motion: Move to adopt the Resolution Waiving Penalty Fees and Interest for Failure to File a Property
Transfer Affidavit.




City of Parchment
Kalamazoo County, Michigan

RESOLUTION WAIVING PENALTY FEES AND INTEREST
FOR FAILURE TO FILE A PROPERTY TRANSFER AFFIDAVIT

WHEREAS, section 211.27a of the General Property Tax Act requires the buyer, grantee or other
transferee of property to file a property transfer affidavit as prescribed by the State Tax Commission,
with the appropriate Assessing Officer in the local unit of government in which the property is located;
and

WHEREAS, section 211.27b of the General Property Tax Act imposes penalties for the failure to file a
property Transfer Affidavit after 45 days have elapsed; and

WHEREAS, Section 211.27b of General Property Tax Act provides that the local governing body may
waive, by Resolution, the penalties levied for the failure to file 3 Property transfer Affidavit; and

WHEREAS, the City Of Parchment hereby waives the penalties for the failure to file a Property Transfer
Affidavit within 45 days of transfer.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, that the Commission of the City Of Parchment hereby waive
penalties under Section 211.27b of the General Property Tax Act,

IT 1S FURTHER RESOLVED that the Clerk of the City Of Parchment is hereby directed to send a certified
copy of this Resolution to the City Assessor and to the Director of Kalamazoo County Equalization
Department.

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that all resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby
repealed.

l, Shannon Stutz, City Clerk for the City of Parchment, do hereby certify that the foregoing City of
Parchment Resolution was adopted by the City Commission at a regular meeting held on February 20,
2023, and that the following is a record of the vote of the members of said City Commission on said
Resolution. Motion was made by and seconded by to adopt
the foregoing Resolution. Roil call vote was as follows: :

Ayes:
Nays:
Absent:
Abstain:

The Mayor declared the motion carried and the resclution duly adopted.

Shannon Stutz, City Clerk




